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Nina Rappaport historian,  
curator, and educator in  
Vertical Urban Factory, focuses 
on the spaces of production 
in cities that are significant in 
their design and contribute  
to a vital urban environment. 
This book reexamines the 
modernist and contemporary 
factory through the lens of  
an urbanist and issues labor  
in the city while provoking  
the future of urban manu-
facturing. It shows that now 
that factories are cleaner and 
greener, smaller and taller, 
hybrid and flexible, they can 
be reintegrated into city life 
creating a new paradigm  
for a sustainable, mixed-use, 
and more self-sufficient indus-
trial urbanism.

Illustrated with historic and 
contemporary photographs, 
manufacturing and building 
process diagrams. Designed 
by MGMT. design. 

130 131

VE
RT

IC
AL

 U
RB

AN
 F

AC
TO

RY
 T

H
E 

M
OD

ER
N

 F
AC

TO
RY

 T
H

E 
AR

T 
OF

 T
H

E 
EN

GI
N

EE
R 

VE
RT

IC
AL

 U
RB

AN
 F

AC
TO

RY
 T

H
E 

M
OD

ER
N

 F
AC

TO
RY

 T
H

E 
AR

T 
OF

 T
H

E 
EN

GI
N

EE
R  

of a larger opening, the windows rose to the 
full ceiling height, thus increasing the natural 
light. This strategy, in turn, allowed the concrete 
structural grid to be expressed on the facade in 
what could be considered a vernacular modern. 
In the 18-by-100-meter building, columns widely 
spaced at ten-meter intervals opened up the inte-
rior for large-scale equipment and flexible space 
for manufacturing. The Kahn reinforcing bar, 
resisted tension along the bottom of the beam or 
girder and then lay adjacent to each other along 
the span to resist shear in the concrete beams.

Although Building 10 had glazed tile and brick 
spandrels on its main facade, its chief character-
istics were minimal detailing and tough structural 
expression — sharp edges and a flat facade and 
roof made for an economic building pared down 
to its structural bones. As Banham noted about 
the project, “It is the null-value condition, the 
zero-term of architecture, and hardly any other ar-
chitect or builder with a professional conscience 
could have done it.”16 This simplicity of construc-
tion is where the engineering takes precedence 
over the architectural detailing, and became an 
influential Modern vertical factory trope.

Infrastructure connections were essential to 
the factory location: a railroad spur ran alongside 
the building and pedestrian bridges connected 
the different levels of the shops of the one-
million-square-meter complex. The company 
employed six-thousand workers making up to 
54,000 cars in 1928. After decades of neglect 
the building is now being renovated into a mixed 
use manufacturing building.

FIAT LINGOTTO
GIACOMO MATTÈ-TRUCCO,  

TURIN, ITALY, 1913–23

Italian industry in the early twentieth century was 
supported by a newly constructed network of 
transit and communications in the north, which 
became home to automotive and aircraft indus-
tries including Alfa-Romeo, Bianchi, Pirelli, and 
Olivetti. Giovanni Agnelli (1866–1945) founded 
the Fiat automobile company in 1899 with a group 
of investors, beginning its first large-scale produc-
tion line in 1912 in Turin on the Corso Dante. The 
company’s subsidiaries, located nearby, fed into 
their supply chain. Agnelli realized the potential for 
cheaper production and made a popular smaller 
car, the Tipo Zero, from 1912 to 1915. In World 
War I, due to pressing demand for vehicular trans-
port, a new plant was needed to produce 25,000 
engines, trucks, ambulances, and aircraft per year. 
Fiat diversified to steel works, shipyards, aviation, 
and larger engineering complexity to corner the 
wartime market. 

Like so many European industrialists, Agnelli 
toured American factories to see the design and 
the management style, including Albert Kahn’s 
Highland Park, which was inspirational to him.17 
Upon returning to Italy, he hired structural en-
gineer Giacomo Mattè-Trucco (1869–1934) to 
design the new Lingotto factory, which opened 
in 1923. Mattè-Trucco studied mechanical 
engineering in Turin and worked not only for Fiat 
but for the foundry Michele Ansaldi, which had 
been absorbed by Fiat in 1909. He became 
Fiat’s mechanical director and ran the company’s 
steel foundry, then worked on the development 
of diesel motors. Mattè-Trucco went on to study 
structural engineering and built naval dockyards, 
arsenals, silos, and the hydroelectric plant of 
Perosa on the Chisone River in 1928. 

Ugo Gobbato (1888–1945) also joined 
the team as production engineer, along with 
engineers Francesco Cartasegna and Vittorio 
Bonadè Bottino (1889–1997). The new plant 
was designed as an integrated vertical factory, 
with the manufacturing organization based on 
continuous flow processing. Lingotto, unlike 
most vertical factories, had a unique distinction: 
its production was inverted, flowing from bottom 
to top. The process culminated in a dramatic 
kilometer-long, oval, banked rooftop test track 
that embodied the new cult of the automobile 
and was immediately embraced by Italy’s Futurist 

artists and architects. In fact, the Gruppo 7 
salon of architects considered it one of the few 
industrial buildings in Italy that possessed archi-
tectural value. Futurist poet F. T. Marinetti called 
it the “prime invention of Futurist construction.” 
Although Mattè-Trucco was never involved in the 
Rationalist movement, the Fiat building figured 
prominently in the first Esposizione dell’Architet-
tura Razionale in Rome in 1928. 

Lingotto was unprecedented in scale for 
a European factory, with 4.8 million square 
meters of manufacturing space accommodating 
six-thousand workers. The complex included a 
main production building, smaller buildings for 
pre-assembly, and a small office building with 
classical columns called the “Palazzina” (Little 
Palace). The five-story main plant was composed 
of two elongated wings running parallel for a third 
of a mile. Two four-story workshops joined at the 
ends for material flow. At regular intervals, towers 
— three inside and one at each end — linked the 
parallel volumes to create interior courtyards for 
light and air. A square press-shop for handling 
sheet metal sat at the south end and a five-story 
building housing the assembly workshop was at 
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ramp, Fiat Factory , Lingotto, Italy, 1926


